
LOWELL PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD MEETING

Special Meeting

Thursday, July 6th, 2023, 5:30 P.M.

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. DETERMINATION OF QUORUM

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

4. CHANGES TO AND APPROVAL OF AGENDA

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM June 6th, 2023, MEETING

6. OLD BUSINESS
a) None.

7. NEW BUSINESS
a. Preliminary Plat Review 

• File # PP2023-01 - Spencer Ridge Subdivision (former Pulte Homes 
project): Review preliminary plat as required by Section 7.11(E) 
Subdivision Plat Approval.

b. Preliminary Capacity Assurance Review (PCAR) Application
• File # PCAR2023-03 Spencer Ridge (former Pulte Homes project):

Review and make recommendation on an application requesting water and
sanitary sewer to this project located off Lowell-Spencer Mountain Road 
north of George Poston Park.

c. Preliminary Capacity Assurance Review (PCAR) Application
• File # PCAR2023-04 Willow Creek Meadows (former Lowell 

Townhomes/Groves Street TH: Review and make recommendation on a revised 
application request to extend water and sanitary sewer services to this project 
located off Groves Street north of Highway 74. 

d. Lowell Development Ordinance (LDO) Training:  
• Discussion about staff providing training to the Planning Board on a 

regular basis during their meetings.

8. ADJOURNMENT

101 W. First Street
Lowell, North Carolina 28098

Phone: 704-824-3518
www.lowellnc.com



1 | P a g e

MINUTES
Lowell Planning and Zoning Board

Regular Meeting
Tuesday, June 6, 2023, 6:00 P.M.

I. CALL TO ORDER 

Chairman Scott Wilson, called the meeting to order at 6:02 p.m. Planning Board 
members present: Heather Seay, Troy Roberts Sr., Norris Lamb and David Jennings.    
Staff members present: Joe Gates, Planning Director, Todd Stroupe, GIS Analyst and
Cheryl Ramsey, City Clerk. There were no members of the public in attendance.

II. DETERMINATION OF QUORUM –it was determined a quorum was reached.

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - led by Scott Wilson

IV. CHANGES TO AND APPROVAL OF AGENDA – No changes. Board Member 
Lamb made a motion to approve the agenda with the change, seconded by Board 
Member Roberts.  The vote was unanimously in favor.

V. APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM THE April 4, 2023, MEETING. 

A motion was made by Board Member Jennings to approve the previous minutes, 
seconded by Board Member Seay.  The vote was unanimously in favor.

VI. OLD BUSINESS – None

VII. NEW BUSINESS
A. Test Amendment Application (Recommendation): ZTA23-04 – Applicant: 

City of Lowell Staff –Request to reduce the “Corner Lot Side Street Setback” in 
the Industrial (IND) zoning district.  Mr. Gates presented the proposed 
amendment to reduce the corner lot side street setback from 80 feet to 40 feet.  
Staff believes this request is reasonable and in the best interest of the public 
because it aligns development regulations with supporting infrastructure needs.  
Staff also maintains the amendment is consistent with Lowell City 2040 plan 
goals.  

Board Member Jennings asked can they do anything with the buffer, like put 
anything on it?  Mr. Gates directed the board to Appendix B in the agenda packet 
denoting the relevant definitions related to the amendment.  He then discussed the 
Type A Buffer yard and mentioned the landscape requirements noting that you 
can’t typically build on a buffer but may see other encroachments like an A/C unit 
overhang or a driveway that is like a cut-through.  Board Member Lamb asked if 



2 | P a g e

parking is included.  Mr. Gates said not in buffers.  A general rule for parking is 
they are typically on the side or the back of the building.  

Mr. Gates stated that the last setback under the old ordinance was lower than the 
proposed at 25 or 30 feet, indicating this is not something that Lowell has not 
done in the past.  Chairman Wilson asked what other municipalities are doing.  
Mr. Gates said that he hasn’t looked at other municipalities but focused on the 
needs of Lowell.  He said it was hard to compare when trying to accommodate to 
our specific LDO, setbacks, and buffers.  

Chairman Wilson asked if he knows why it [the code] was set at 80 feet.  Mr. 
Gates said no as it was before his and all the current Planning Boards time [as 
employee and members].  Board Member Lamb said he can understand why since 
the previous Council were probably looking at the streets not necessarily the front 
but the sides.  After a brief discussion on the history of the code and purpose of 
the amendment, Board Member Lamb made a motion to accept the change to 
decrease the setback on corner lots from 80 feet to 40 feet.  It was seconded by 
Board Member Jennings and the vote was unanimously in favor.

B. July 2023 Planning Board Meeting: Discuss July meeting.  The current meeting 
date falls on July 4th (Independence Day) holiday. Mr. Gates suggested 
rescheduling the board meeting to a later date and time during the same week as 
there may be items that need to be addressed before the July City Council meeting
[on July 11, 2023].  He then went over the Rules of Procedures for holding
Planning Board meetings. After a brief discussion, Board Member Jennings made 
a motion to change the meeting to the 6th at 5:30pm, seconded by Board Member 
Roberts.  The vote was unanimously in favor.  Chairman Wilson suggested 
everyone put the change in their calendars.  Mr. Gates stated he will send a 
reminder and the City Clerk will notify the public of the change.  

VIII. ADJOURN

Motion was made to adjourn by Board Member Jennings, seconded by Board Member Seay.  
The vote was unanimously in favor. Adjourned at 6:25 p.m.

AFFIRM:

____________________________ ____________________________
Chair, Scott Wilson Cheryl Ramsey, City Clerk



To:  Lowell Planning Board 

From:  Joe Gates, Planning Director

Date:  Thursday, July 6, 2023

RE: AGENDA ITEM 7A Preliminary Plat Review 

Application File Number: PP2023-01 Spencer Ridge Subdivision

Background: 
The proposed development is zoned Single Family Residential - Conditional, SFR-4 (CZ 2022-08), and the 
proposed development is a permitted use in this district. The project area is approximately 223 acres 
and contains 406 single family detached units. The subject property lies fully within the corporate city 
limits of Lowell. This project is subject to conditions approved by the City Council, File Number RZ2022-
03. 

City staff and other members of the Lowell Technical Review Committee met on June 21st, 2023 to 
review the plat. Their comments have been added to this report in Attachment C. 

Planning Board Action: 
Review and make recommendation to staff per Article 7, Section 7.11-1 (E)(3) Submittal of Plans to 
Planning Board of the Lowell Development Ordinance. This section states that 

 This review shall be made by the Planning Board as requested by the Planning, Zoning & 
Subdivision Administrator. The Planning Board shall provide input on the Preliminary 
Plat/Site Development Plan for Major Subdivisions only in accordance with the applicable 
requirements of this Ordinance.

Attachment A: Preliminary Plat - Spencer Ridge 
Attachment B: Approved Conditional Zoning for Spencer Ridge, SFR-4 (CZ 2022-08) 
Attachment C: Notes from the Lowell Technical Review Committee 



ATTACHEMENT A 

PRELIMINARY PLAT: SPENCER RIDGE SUBDIVISION 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT 
BLANK.  





ATTACHEMENT B 

CONDITIONAL REZONING PLAN: SPENCER RIDGE SUBDIVISION 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT 
BLANK.  







Planning Department 
To: TRC Distribution List

From: Joe Gates, Planning Director

Date: Wednesday, June 21, 2023

Re:  TRC Meeting Minutes 

See below for summary of this week’s TRC meeting.

Preliminary
The Engineers/Developers (McAdams/Lennar) for the Spencer Ridge neighborhood development have submitted a 
preliminary plat for staff review. The site consists of approx. 233 acres/406 units and abuts Poston Park and lies on 
both sides of Lowell Spencer Mountain Rd.  City staff, MPO, NCDOT and Gaston County met and went over the plan. 

Water and Sewer (Joe Gates, Lowell Planning Dept) 
- PCAR (Preliminary Capacity Assurance Review) and FCAR (Final Capacity Assurance Review) will be required for 

this development due to the GPD exceeding the 5,000 GPD threshold.  
- Recommendation from the Planning Board and approval by the City Council is required per the Utility 

Allocation Policy. 
- PCAR application has been submitted to staff and will be reviewed by the Planning Board at their July 6th, 2023,

Meeting. 
- City Council will review the application on July 11th, 2023, Meeting.
- Thomas (PW) was unable to attend the TRC meeting. Plans will be sent to obtain any further comments before 

returning the plans to the applicant.

Engineering (Bonnie/ LaBella/ Lowell City Engineer) 
- Collector streets and the capacity thresholds for such streets. May need to review street sections in the 

Standards Manual. Trying to balance moving traffic and safe design for pedestrians.
- Need to revisit additional water connections for phase 4. Need to look at additional connection through George 

Poston Park. (meeting set with Gaston County to start this discussion).  
- Use of “Mountain” design for certain sections of road within the development was discussed. Staff agreed that

using “mountain” design would be acceptable for those limited sections of road, based on elevation/contours. 
NCDOT agreed with this logic and referenced a similar project in Gaston County where this approach was used.
McAdams has provided a topographic map with % slopes color coded to support the mountainous 
classification.

Police (Chief Moore, Lowell PD) 



- Chief Moore asked if the speed limit could be lowered from 45 to 35 for the section of Lowell-Spencer 
Mountain Rd. Blake Guffey with NCDOT stated that Scott had sent in the official request, and it would be taken 
for consideration/review by NCDOT. 
 

Fire (Chief Cunningham, Lowell VFD) 
- Unable to attend the meeting. The Planning Director will follow up with Fire to collect comments. 

 
Stormwater/Grading/Erosion (Chad Waldrup, Gaston County Natural Resources) 

- Stream Buffers and % of slope. Chad and Jon Berger with the County are available for pre-submittal meetings 
to assist the applicant. Stream buffers could impact lot count. Chad will send other comments to Lowell staff 
before July 6th Planning Board meeting. 

- Spencer Ridge – Gaston County Natural Resources Comments 
- Be sure to evaluate proposed limits of disturbance (including at SCM locations) for compliance with section 

6.74 “buffer zones” in the NC DEQ SE&SC Planning and Design Manual. There are many instances where the 
proposed grades extend well into the 100’ buffer and close to streams. 

- Also, buffer requirements can affect lot layouts based on existing percent of slope. 
- Follow the Spacing Guide for Slope Breaks in Table 6.02a of the NC DEQ SE&SC Planning and Design Manual. 
- PID# 202774 has approximately 20 acres of the maximum rating for Biodiversity and Wildlife Habitat 

Assessment by the NC Natural Heritage Program. See the NHP website for reference: 
https://ncnhde.natureserve.org/content/map  

- This property is adjacent to over 3,000 acres of conserved land (Redlair; Laurel Hill; Catawba Thread Trail; 
George Poston Park- all part of the Spencer Mountain Conservation Area). Because of this, habitat conservation 
is especially important to reduce habitat fragmentation and maintain intact ecosystems with 
continuity/corridors. Gaston County Natural Resources Department recommends the developer obtain a 
Wildlife Friendly Development certification through the Wildlife Resources Commission (WRC) as a part of the 
conditional zoning. This process involves working with WRC wildlife biologists through the design process.  

- Bigleaf Magnolia is listed on NC’s Endangered Species list as a species of Special Concern – Vulnerable meaning 
“Any species or higher taxon of plant which is likely to become a threatened species within the foreseeable 
future" (NCAC 02 NCAC 48F .0401). Bigleaf Magnolia is present on this property. Gaston County Natural 
Resources Department recommends the developer complete an environmental survey as a part of the 
conditional zoning process. The occurrences of Bigleaf Magnolia should be identified and impacts to these 
areas should be minimized. 

 
Zoning/ Planning (Joe Gates, Lowell Planning Director) 

- Property is conditionally zoned, file RZ22-03. Staff are currently reviewing this plan.  
- Staff will bring the plan to the Planning Board meeting on July 6th 2023, for comment/input per LDO 

requirements.  
- Staff will return comments to the applicant after the planning board meeting and all comments have been 

collected. 
 

MPO (Randi Gates, GCLMPO) 
- A proposed new 2-lane roadway, the North Ranlo Loop, is included in the MPO’s CTP. This recommended new 

major road connects Lower Dallas Hwy. and Ranlo Spencer Mountain Rd./Spencer Mountain Rd. A functional 
design has been completed for this proposed roadway, but the project is not funded and the alignment is 
subject to change.  

- Review Carolina Thread Trail connections for this project pay attention to crossings of Lowell Spencer Mountain 
Rd. 
 
 
 

Park and Recreation (Cristy Cummings, Lowell) 



- Verify open space requires and review amenities for the community. Cristy also mentioned Carolina Thread 
Trail connectivity. 

 
NCDOT (Blake Guffey) 

- Blake provided staff with TIA Scope Submittal from July 2022. 
- Based on the proposed changes to the plan (406 lots v 422 lots) and one access has now been shifted north to 

line up as a 4-leg instead of 2 Ts. The addendum will be sufficient and would not require the developer to start 
over again. 

- Blake discussed the speed limit question with the District Engineer along Lowell Spencer Mountain Rd. The 
District Engineer agrees that the speed limit should be reduced based on Scott Attaway’s (Lowell City Manager) 
letter to reduce the speed limit to 35mph as requested. The official process of writing ordinance and obtaining 
signatures at code take a few months. 



1 

e-mail this application along with utility plan to:
CHARLOTTE WATER
newservicerequests@ci.charlotte.nc.us

Capacity Assurance Review Application

FLOW ACCEPTANCE / WILLINGNESS TO SERVE
All requests require a utility drawing indicating that proposed water/sewer connection point(s) and sizes.

SELECT SUBMITTAL TYPE:

FLOW ACCEPTANCE (RESERVES CAPACITY)

WILLINGNESS TO SERVE (DOES NOT RESERVE CAPACITY)

Requested By

First Name    Last name Company, HOA, Developer, etc. 

Address Apartment/Unit #

City    State    Zip  Email   Fax Phone 

Project Location

Project Name Phone

Site Address Apartment/Unit #

City State     Zip   Email 

CContact Person Name

Project Information
Complete the following: 

1. Project is    new   modification

2. Type of development (15A NCAC 02T.0114 Wastewater Design Flow Rates)
a. Residential, apartment units
b. Residential, townhome/condominium units
c. Amenity Center (sf) or Pool (people) units
d. Residential, single-family lots

i. Public Roads?  Y  N

e. Restaurant seats
f. Retail or retail with food prep sf
g. Office #emp/shift
h. Warehouse #loading bays
i. Hotel or suites rooms
j. School students

i. Cafeteria    Y   N

ii. Gym/Locker Rooms  Y   N

k. Other (provide flow calculations)

3. Will this project have a pool? Y  N

a. If yes, pool must have a 4-inch drain line



2 

4. Will this project have a private sewer lift station?    Y   N

5. Total wastewater flow requested (average daily flow in gpd, show calculations)
6. Commercial only: Peak wastewater flow requested (peak hourly flow in GPH):
7. Average Daily Water Demand:
8. Peak Water Demand (GPM):

9. Does this project include a 6-inch or larger private sewer line providing service to multiple buildings? Y   N

10. Does this project include a 2-inchor larger private water line providing service to multiple buildings?    Y    N

FOR CHARLOTTE WATER USE ONLY

CLT Water Tracking # Map #

CBasin Flow amount (gpd)

Does the flow transmit through a CLT Water lift station? Y  N 

If yes, which station? 

WWTF:  McAlpine  McDowell Irwin  Sugar  Mallard  Rocky River F



ATTACHEMENT D - SPENCER RIDGE SITE PLAN 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT 
BLANK.  





ATTACHEMENT D   

CITY ENGINEER REPORT: SPENCER RIDGE SUBDIVISION 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT 
BLANK.  



TO: Joe Gates , City of Lowell Planning Administrator

FROM: Jeff Sweater, PE, LaBella Associates Senior Project Manager

DATE: June 30, 2023

RE: PCAR Review - Spencer Ridge Development

The proposed development is located within the City of Lowell Utilities service area and will 
be constructed in four phases. Phase 1 is projected for completion by December 2025 and 
the final Phase 4 by December 2028. Per the attached PCAR application, the project includes 
a swimming pool and 406 lots, with an estimated average daily sewage flow rate of 100,780 
gallons per day (gpd) and an estimated average daily water usage rate of 165,740 gallons per 
day (gpd).

We have reviewed the PCAR for the subject project submitted by the Developer and have 
the following comments:

1. System Capacity: Based on current water and sewer system capacities, flow 
projections for known proposed connections, and planned Capital Improvements, the 
City of Lowell appears to have water and sewer capacity to serve the proposed 
project.  

The Developer is proposing to phase permitting and construction of the subdivision 
over a period of 5 years or less. The availability of water and sewer capacity is not 
guaranteed until tapping fees are paid, AND the connection permit for the proposed 
lot and certificate of occupancy for the house have been issued by the City. 

Our determination of available capacity assumes sewer system I&I, water system 
leakage rates, and regulations remain consistent with current conditions and trends. It 
is also assumed any unknown applicants wishing to purchase capacity within the next 
5 years are not significant enough to cause limitations or a moratorium on connections. 

2. Connections: Issuance of connection permits to City’s water and sewer facilities will 
be subject to the following:

a. Review and approval of detailed engineered utility plans meeting the City’s 
minimum requirements.  

b. Review and approval of shop drawings prior to construction of infrastructure 
that is proposed for dedication to the City.

c. All required infrastructure improvements pursuant to the City’s W/S Extension 
policy, and/or a separate Developer’s Agreement, have been properly 
constructed, inspected by the City or this designated representatives, passed 
all required quality control testing, and have been fully dedicated to the City. 



2

The Developer is responsible to initiate and secure all required permits for the 
proposed improvements at their own expense.

d. Proof of recordation of any required easements or rights-of-way to the City 
have been provided for all new infrastructure improvements needed to serve 
said connection(s). 

e. The Developer has reimbursed the City for all reasonable engineering, legal, 
and administrative expenses incurred by the City as a result of the project.  

f. All required capacity, meter setting, and other connection fees have been paid 
pursuant to the City Fee Schedule Ordinance NCGS 162A (as last amended) 
and the service application has been filed at the City’s Customer Service office. 

g. Suitable water and sewer capacity is confirmed to still be available in the 
system by the City and no moratoriums on connections have been imposed by 
DEQ. 

3. Water System Design Considerations: The proposed project will require extension of 
the City’s 12” water main water system that dead ends near the former Yorkshire Plant 
site on North Main Street/Lowell Spencer Mountain Road.   

a. The Developer’s Engineer shall confirm the feasibility of water and sewer 
service to the proposed area, as well as adequate fire flow protection.

b. With this portion of the City water system not being looped and the proposed 
extension creating an even longer dead end in the water system, water quality 
impacts with respect to water age should be investigated by the Applicant to 
determine the City’s potential exposure for increased Total Trihalomethanes 
(TTHM)/disinfection byproducts and minimum Total Residual Chlorine (TRC) 
violations, and if any temporary or permanent design and/or O&M changes are 
warranted to be implemented by the Developer. Investigations should include 
initial impacts when only the first few homes in Phase I are occupied, and 
impacts at full buildout. 

4. Sewer System Design Considerations: It appears the proposed project can be served 
by the existing 15” sanitary sewer line located at the intersection of Main Street and 
River Falls Drive with construction of a pump station and force main. 

a. Existing flow in the 15” line was monitored from August 4, 2022 to December 31 
2022 and the pipe appeared to have sufficient capacity to serve the proposed 
development based on flow data observed for that period. 

b. A pump station with force main is proposed to convey the entire development 
flow to the manhole at MH-1400. The pump station shall be designed per the 
City’s requirements and dedicated to the City. The proposed peak pumping 
rate of the pump station to the gravity sewer main must be provided to 
determine if any limitations in peak flow could be required that must be 
incorporated into the final station design.   

5. System Upgrades:  All on-site and offsite water and sewer main extensions, and other 
required upgrades to the existing systems needed to accommodate the proposed 
development, shall be designed by a Professional Engineer, constructed, and 



3

financed at the Developer’s sole expense in accordance with the City of Lowell’s 
Standards and Extension Policy.  It is recommended that any required offsite 
improvements are covered by a Developer’s Agreement that incorporates 
engineering review prior to City Council approval.   

6. Easements: All water mains shall be centered in a 20-foot General Public Utility 
Easement (G.P.U.E) and all sewer mains shall be centered in a 30-foot G.P.U.E if not 
located within a dedicated right-of-way.  Water and sewer mains shall be horizontally 
offset no less than 10-feet from a dedicated right-of-way boundary line and other 
utility lines.  All offsite easements are to be obtained by the Developer at their 
expense.

7. Capacity Fees: Water and Sewer capacity fees will be due based on the prevailing fee 
schedule and in compliance with GS 162A. Water and Sewer taps will be pre-installed 
by the developer pursuant to City standards.  Meter set fees will be due based on the 
prevailing fee schedule when service is desired for activation for that particular unit 
within the development.  

8. Additional comments will be provided after submittal of engineered utility plans for 
the development.

Note that approval of the PCAR indicates a Willingness to Serve the development and is not 
an assurance of water or sewer capacity. Water and sewer flow allocation and construction 
plans shall be reviewed and approved during the FCAR process per the City’s Policy for 
Managing Utility Allocations & Extensions. 

If you have any questions, feel free to contact me at 704-941-2143 or 941-374-3930.   



ATTACHEMENT F 

PUBLIC WORKS REPORT: SPENCER RIDGE SUBDIVISION 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT 
BLANK.  



























ATTACHEMENT D

POLICY FOR MANANGING UTILITY ALLOCATIONS AND EXTENSIONS

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT
BLANK.



1 

e-mail this application along with utility plan to:
CHARLOTTE WATER
newservicerequests@ci.charlotte.nc.us

Capacity Assurance Review Application

FLOW ACCEPTANCE / WILLINGNESS TO SERVE
All requests require a utility drawing indicating that proposed water/sewer connection point(s) and sizes.

SELECT SUBMITTAL TYPE:

FLOW ACCEPTANCE (RESERVES CAPACITY)

WILLINGNESS TO SERVE (DOES NOT RESERVE CAPACITY)

Requested By

First Name    Last name Company, HOA, Developer, etc. 

Address Apartment/Unit #

City    State    Zip  Email   Fax Phone 

Project Location

Project Name Phone

Site Address Apartment/Unit #

City State     Zip   Email 

CContact Person Name

Project Information
Complete the following: 

1. Project is    new   modification

2. Type of development (15A NCAC 02T.0114 Wastewater Design Flow Rates)
a. Residential, apartment units
b. Residential, townhome/condominium units
c. Amenity Center (sf) or Pool (people) units
d. Residential, single-family lots

i. Public Roads?  Y  N

e. Restaurant seats
f. Retail or retail with food prep sf
g. Office #emp/shift
h. Warehouse #loading bays
i. Hotel or suites rooms
j. School students

i. Cafeteria    Y   N

ii. Gym/Locker Rooms  Y   N

k. Other (provide flow calculations)

3. Will this project have a pool? Y  N

a. If yes, pool must have a 4-inch drain line



2 

4. Will this project have a private sewer lift station?    Y   N

5. Total wastewater flow requested (average daily flow in gpd, show calculations)
6. Commercial only: Peak wastewater flow requested (peak hourly flow in GPH):
7. Average Daily Water Demand:
8. Peak Water Demand (GPM):

9. Does this project include a 6-inch or larger private sewer line providing service to multiple buildings? Y   N

10. Does this project include a 2-inchor larger private water line providing service to multiple buildings?    Y    N

FOR CHARLOTTE WATER USE ONLY

CLT Water Tracking # Map #

CBasin Flow amount (gpd)

Does the flow transmit through a CLT Water lift station? Y  N 

If yes, which station? 

WWTF:  McAlpine  McDowell Irwin  Sugar  Mallard  Rocky River F



ATTACHEMENT H 

SITE PLAN:  WILLOW CREEK MEADOWS 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT 
BLANK.  





ATTACHEMENT D  

 POLICY FOR MANANGING UTILITY ALLOCATIONS AND EXTENSIONS  

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT 
BLANK.  



TO: Joe Gates , City of Lowell Planning Administrator

FROM: Jeff Sweater, PE, LaBella Associates Senior Project Manager

DATE: July 5, 2023

RE: PCAR Review – Groves Street Townhomes

The proposed development is located within the City of Lowell Utilities service area. Per the 
attached PCAR application, the project includes 177 townhome units, with an estimated 
average daily sewage flow rate of 31,860 gallons per day (gpd) and an estimated average 
daily water usage rate of 70,800 gallons per day (gpd).

We have reviewed the PCAR for the subject project submitted by the Developer and have 
the following comments:

1. System Capacity: Based on current water and sewer system capacities, flow 
projections for known proposed connections, and planned Capital Improvements, the 
City of Lowell appears to have water and sewer capacity to serve the proposed 
project.  

The availability of water and sewer capacity is not guaranteed until tapping fees are 
paid, AND the connection permit for the proposed lot and certificate of occupancy for 
the house have been issued by the City. 

Our determination of available capacity assumes sewer system I&I, water system 
leakage rates, and regulations remain consistent with current conditions and trends. It 
is also assumed any unknown applicants wishing to purchase capacity within the time 
period of the proposed development are not significant enough to cause limitations 
or a moratorium on connections. 

2. Connections: Issuance of connection permits to City’s water and sewer facilities will 
be subject to the following:

a. Review and approval of detailed engineered utility plans meeting the City’s 
minimum requirements.  

b. Review and approval of shop drawings prior to construction of infrastructure 
that is proposed for dedication to the City.

c. All required infrastructure improvements pursuant to the City’s W/S Extension 
policy, and/or a separate Developer’s Agreement, have been properly 
constructed, inspected by the City or this designated representatives, passed 
all required quality control testing, and have been fully dedicated to the City. 
The Developer is responsible to initiate and secure all required permits for the 
proposed improvements at their own expense.



2

d. Proof of recordation of any required easements or rights-of-way to the City 
have been provided for all new infrastructure improvements needed to serve 
said connection(s). 

e. The Developer has reimbursed the City for all reasonable engineering, legal, 
and administrative expenses incurred by the City as a result of the project.  

f. All required capacity, meter setting, and other connection fees have been paid 
pursuant to the City Fee Schedule Ordinance NCGS 162A (as last amended) 
and the service application has been filed at the City’s Customer Service office. 

g. Suitable water and sewer capacity is confirmed to still be available in the 
system by the City and no moratoriums on connections have been imposed by 
DEQ. 

3. Water System Design Considerations: The proposed project will require connection to  
the City’s 8” water main water system in Groves Street and a looped connection to the 
City’s existing 8” water main on Ford Road.   

a. The Developer’s Engineer shall confirm the feasibility of water service to the 
proposed area, as well as adequate fire flow protection.

b. A hydrant flow test performed within the last 12 months should be obtained 
and used by the Developer’s Engineer for fire flow projection calculations 
and/or modeling.  

4. Sewer System Design Considerations: The proposed project will require connection 
to the City’s existing 8” gravity sanitary sewer line in Groves Street at manhole MH-
4110A. 

a. The flows from the proposed development were included in the City’s 2022 
Reid Street Pump Station Reversal to TRU feasibility study. The existing 8” sewer 
line from Groves Street to the downstream TRU Metering Station at Fair Street 
was found sufficient to serve the proposed development based upon the study 
assumptions and flow observed during 2022. 

b. The City has a Interlocal Agreement with TRU to discharge sewer flows from 
the Groves Street/Wilkinson Blvd area to the Fair Street metering station. Per 
emailed correspondence with TRU during the feasibility study, the Fair Street 
metering station appears to have sufficient capacity to accept the proposed 
flows from the Project. 

c. A pump station with force main is proposed to convey the entire development 
flow to a manhole in Groves Street. The pump station shall be designed per the 
City’s requirements and dedicated to the City. The proposed peak pumping 
rate of the pump station to the gravity sewer main must be provided to 
determine if any limitations in peak flow could be required that must be 
incorporated into the final station design.   

5. System Upgrades:  All on-site and offsite water and sewer main extensions, and other 
required upgrades to the existing systems needed to accommodate the proposed 
development, shall be designed by a Professional Engineer, constructed, and 
financed at the Developer’s sole expense in accordance with the City of Lowell’s 



3

Standards and Extension Policy.  It is recommended that any required offsite 
improvements and on-site pump stations are covered by a Developer’s Agreement 
that incorporates engineering review prior to City Council approval.   

6. Easements: All water mains shall be centered in a 20-foot General Public Utility 
Easement (G.P.U.E) and all sewer mains shall be centered in a 30-foot G.P.U.E if not 
located within a dedicated right-of-way.  Water and sewer mains shall be horizontally 
offset no less than 10-feet from a dedicated right-of-way boundary line and other 
utility lines.  All offsite easements are to be obtained and recorded by the Developer 
at their expense.

7. Capacity Fees: Water and Sewer capacity fees will be due based on the prevailing fee 
schedule and in compliance with GS 162A. Water and Sewer taps will be pre-installed 
by the developer pursuant to City standards.  Meter set fees will be due based on the 
prevailing fee schedule when service is desired for activation for that particular unit 
within the development.  

8. Additional comments will be provided after submittal of engineered utility plans for 
the development.

Note that approval of the PCAR indicates a Willingness to Serve the development and is not 
an assurance of water or sewer capacity. Water and sewer flow allocation and construction 
plans shall be reviewed and approved during the FCAR process per the City’s Policy for 
Managing Utility Allocations & Extensions. 

If you have any questions, feel free to contact me at 704-941-2143 or 941-374-3930.   



ATTACHEMENT C - PUBLIC WORKS REPORT 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY 
LEFT BLANK.  





To:  Lowell Planning Board 

From:  Joe Gates, Planning Director

Date:  Thursday, July 6, 2023

RE: AGENDA ITEM 7C Preliminary Capacity Assurance Review 

Application File Number: PCAR2023-04 Willow Creek Meadows Subdivision

Request:
True Homes, LLC is requesting to extend City of Lowell water and sanitary sewer from its existing 
locations in Groves Street (water and sewer) and Ford Drive (water) into their proposed development 
known as Willow Creek Meadows. The project was formally known as the Lowell Townhomes and is 
adjacent to the Choice Beverage property on Groves Street. 

Background: 
The proposed development is zoned Mixed Use (MU-2) and the proposed development is a permitted 
use in this district. The project area is approximately 33 acres and 177 townhome units. The subject 
property lies fully within the corporate city limits of Lowell. 

Analysis:
Per Section 1 - Policy for Evaluating and Reserving Utility Allocations, Reservation Process of the City of 
Lowell Policy for Managing Utility Allocations and Extension, the Planning Board “shall review and make 
recommendation to the City Council for consideration and approval of all Willingness to Serve 
notifications (PCAR) and allocations (FCAR), which require or may require a daily flow allocation of five 
thousand gallons (5,000gpd) or more”. In addition per Section 1 - Policy for Evaluating and Reserving 
Utility Allocations, Reservation Process, C(1) Residential Subdivision Development “The City Council shall 
with deliberation incorporate the evaluation of Utility Allocation Request into the decision making 
process associated with each of the aforementioned review processes established within the Cities 
Development Standards and Specifications. The criteria contained herein for evaluation. Of utility 
allocation requests shall be included as elements within the review process for the accompanying land 
use application with regard to conformity with the City of Lowell's policies and ordinances, planning 
practices, and consistency with the adopted. City of Lowell Comprehensive Land Use Plan or later 
version. “ 

 Request exceeds 5,000 gallons per day and must be reviewed by the Planning Board and City 
Council. 

o Estimate Water (GPD) - 71, 600 GPD 
o Estimated Sewer (GPD) - 32, 220 GPD 



 Project lies completely within the corporate city limits. 
 Request meets the following criteria for hierarchy listed in subsection C of Section 1 

o #1 - Location: Priority for utility extension will be given to applicants whose subject 
extension is to serve an area that is within the corporate limits or otherwise 
incorporated into the City of Lowell.   
 

 Proposed project is in conformity with the Comprehensive Land Use Plan and Future Land Use 
Map 
 

Staff Recommendation:
Based on the information above and the evaluation of all the materials, staff is recommending that the 
APPROVAL of this application. 

Planning Board Action:
Review and make recommendation to the City Council. 

Attachment H - Site Plan 
Attachment I - City Engineer Report / Memorandum of Support 
Attachment J - Public Works Report / Memorandum of Support 



To:  Lowell Planning Board 

From:  Joe Gates, Planning Director

Date:  Thursday, July 6, 2023

RE: AGENDA ITEM 7D -  Lowell Development Ordinance Training Discussion 

The  Planning Director and the Scott Wilson, Planning Board Chairman, would like to discuss 
possible topics for the upcoming meetings to learn and review the Lowell Development 
Ordinance and how to use it.


